
 

 

 

I hereby certify that I have posted a copy of this agenda at the following locations: 

  □ Administration Building                   □ Library                       □ Post Office 

___________________________________________ / ___________________ 

Name      Date 

 

1

http://www.sisterbaywi.gov/
mailto:zeke.jackson@sisterbaywi.gov


PLAN COMMISSION MEETING MINUTES 1 

TUESDAY, JUNE 28, 2016 2 

Sister Bay-Liberty Grove Fire Station –2258 Mill Road 3 

UNAPPROVED VERSION 4 
 5 
The June 28, 2016 meeting of the Plan Commission was called to order by Chairperson Dave 6 

Lienau at 5:32 P.M. 7 

 8 

Present:  Chairperson Lienau and members Scott Baker, Nate Bell, Don Howard, Marge 9 
Grutzmacher, and Mary Kay Shumway. 10 

 11 

Excused:  Shane Solomon 12 

 13 

Staff Members:  Village Administrator Zeke Jackson, Village Clerk-Treasurer Christy Sully, 14 

and Assistant Administrator Janal Suppanz 15 

 16 

Others:  Mike Hilber, Fred Lang, Erik Linczmaier, Mary Hammersmith-Linczmaier, Steve 17 

Chomeau, Jackson Parr, Steve Musinsky,  and Sharon Bennington.  18 

 19 
Comments, correspondence and concerns from the public: 20 
Lienau noted that no new correspondence had been received and then asked if anyone 21 

wished to comment regarding a non-agenda item.  22 

 23 

Mike Hilber indicated that he is a member of the Stony Ridge Owner’s Association and has 24 

some questions regarding the Stony Ridge Expansion Project. He has been trying to reach the 25 

Village Administrator regarding this matter, but to date has not been successful. Jackson 26 

took note of Hilber’s contact information and indicated that he will get back to him ASAP.  27 
 28 
Approval of the agenda: 29 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher, seconded by Baker that the Agenda for the June 28, 2016 30 
meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 31 
 32 
Approval of minutes as published: 33 
As to the minutes for the May 31, 2016 meeting of the Plan Commission: 34 
A motion was made by Grutzmacher seconded by Shumway that the minutes for the May 31, 2016 35 
meeting of the Plan Commission be approved as presented. Motion carried – All ayes. 36 
  37 
Business Items: 38 
Item No. 2. Presentation regarding permeable pavers by Holly Weatherwax of County 39 
Materials: 40 
Holly Weatherwax of County Materials indicated that she and her associates are attempting 41 
to get the word out to municipal officials, builders and landscaping architects about the 42 

benefits of permeable pavers. The pavers themselves are not permeable but the joints are. If 43 

permeable pavers are utilized detention ponds and rain gardens are not necessary and local 44 

waterways are cleaned up. It also is not necessary to use as much salt on parking lots which 45 

are constructed of permeable pavers in the winter months as more ground heat is retained. 46 

Permeable pavers have been installed in parking lots in Egg Harbor and Green Bay and they 47 

are working quite well. A grant was obtained for the Egg Harbor project. Weatherwax 48 

2



Minutes for the June 28, 2016 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 -2-  

 

presented a sample of water which ran off a paved parking lot, and noted that that type of 1 

run-off typically contains a variety of pollutants. She also presented some of the different 2 

types of permeable paver blocks which are available. If permeable pavers are utilized 3 

pollutants are greatly reduced. County Materials employees do make a concerted effort to 4 

see that permeable pavers are installed properly on every job they undertake, and permeable 5 

pavers can withstand heavy equipment and heavy traffic. They also work great for parking 6 
lots and streets on which speed limits do not exceed 45 MPH. In conclusion Weatherwax 7 

indicated that she is very excited about the benefits of permeable pavers and would be 8 

happy to meet with anyone interested in receiving further information regarding them.   9 
 10 
Item No. 1.  Review of the proposed architectural façade for a building to be constructed 11 
on Sister Bay Parcel No. 181-00-08312822W, which has been assigned an address of 2450 12 
Bittersweet Lane and is commonly referred to as “the Schaffer Property”; Discussion 13 
regarding façade materials and the architectural design proposal and associated plans;  14 
Consider motions for action, if appropriate: 15 
At 6:12 P.M. a brief recess was taken, and the Commission members reconvened at 6:54 P.M.  16 
 17 
Prior to the time that the recess was taken Lienau noted that a duly noticed public hearing was 18 
conducted regarding this matter on April 12, 2016. He also noted that the Plan Commission and the 19 
Village Board have already approved the development plans for the property located at 2450 20 
Bittersweet Lane.    21 
 22 

A diagram of the proposed storage building Bill Anderson would like to construct on the 23 

property at 2450 Bittersweet Lane was included in the meeting packets, and Jackson read the 24 

sections of the Zoning Code which pertain to the required architectural features for such a 25 

building aloud. One of those requirements is that the building cannot contain long blank 26 

walls. Steve Chomeau appeared on behalf of Anderson and presented samples of the colors 27 

Anderson would like to utilize on the walls, trim, roof and doors. It was the consensus that 28 

the proposed colors are acceptable, but that the roof should match the trim, or be brown. Bell 29 

noted that it appears that there still will be one long blank wall on the proposed building, 30 

and it was eventually the consensus that Anderson shall be asked to provide more detailed 31 
information regarding the storage building’s architectural features at a future Plan 32 

Commission Meeting. Options which were recommended by the Commission members were 33 

breaks every 50’, stone trim, addition of columns similar to those which were utilized on The 34 

Creamery, or the addition of windows.      35 

 36 
At 7:21 P.M. another brief recess was taken, and the Commission reconvened at 7:31 P.M. 37 
 38 
Item No. 3. Review of the U.S. Supreme Court Decision with respect to “Reed v. Town of 39 
Gilbert”; Review of Sister Bay’s Sign Code and proposed revisions which comply with the 40 
standards established by ”Reed v. Gilbert”; Discussion on a proposed re-draft of the 41 
Sister Bay Sign Code; Consider a motion to bring the re-draft to a Public Hearing at a 42 
future meeting of the Plan Commission: 43 
Federal and State Court of Appeals Decisions were recently issued which affect the impact of State and 44 
local government signage regulations. Basically the U.S. Supreme Court Decision with respect to the 45 
case which is entitled “Reed v. Town of Gilbert” states that local municipalities cannot regulate what 46 
wording is contained on signage, but can regulate where signs are placed. A draft of a revised version 47 
of the Sign Code which complies with “Reed v. Gilbert” was included in the meeting packets, and it 48 
was the consensus that this issue shall be addressed at length at a future Plan Commission Meeting(s). 49 

3



Minutes for the June 28, 2016 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

 

 -3-  

 

The Commission members requested that for editing purposes they be provided a hard copy of any 1 
proposed Sign Code revisions.  2 
 3 
Item No. 4. Review of recent revisions to the sections of the Wisconsin Statutes which 4 
pertain to zoning laws and regulations and Court interpretation of those regulations;  5 
Consider a motion to direct staff to re-draft various sections of the Sister Bay Zoning Code 6 
to protect local zoning control:  7 
Wisconsin Act 391, which is commonly referred to “The Property Rights Bill”, pulls further authority 8 
away from local governments with respect to Zoning Code regulations. Specifically Act 391 requires 9 
that a Court must resolve any ambiguity in the meaning of a word or phrase in a Zoning Ordinance 10 
or Shoreland Zoning Ordinance in favor of the “free use” of private property. Jackson requested that 11 
the Commission members consider the provisions of the current Zoning Code which may 12 
unreasonably restrict a private property owner’s “free use” of their property, and be prepared to 13 
address applicable amendments at a future meeting(s). It was eventually the consensus that 14 
amendments to the Zoning Code shall be addressed on a section-by-section basis. As time permits 15 
Jackson will draft applicable amendments, and, if necessary, a work session(s) will be scheduled.  16 
 17 
Item No. 5. Report by the Zoning Administrator regarding development activities, various 18 
enforcement actions, and issuance of Sign and Zoning Permits: 19 
A copy of the Zoning Administrator’s Report was included in the meeting packets and the 20 

Commission members jointly reviewed that document. During the review process Jackson 21 

noted that: 22 

 The work on the Bay Shore Drive Reconstruction Project is done!!!! Some painting has 23 
yet to occur, and traffic control signage needs to be “rebanded” so that it does not 24 

conflict with the pole banners. 25 

 Pat Hockers has completed some top soil removal on the sledding hill. His stone rake 26 
has been sent off to be repaired, but as soon as it is returned the work will be 27 

completed. 28 

 The spring beach inspection took place on June 16th. The inspection revealed that work 29 
will have to be done on rock placement north of the swim dock, there was some sod 30 
subsidence north of the swim dock, fencing/netting needs to be repaired, and the 31 

planting areas have to be weeded. Staff is working to develop some narrative signage 32 

for the beach so that visitors will have the opportunity to learn about some of the less 33 

obvious features of the project, such as the rain gardens, native plantings and coarse 34 

sand placement. 35 

 The engineering work is 95% complete on the Harbor View Project. 36 

 The closing took place on the Stony Ridge Expansion Project, and a pre-construction 37 
meeting was conducted on June 20th. Lienau stressed that the money the Village 38 

loaned to Keith Garot was strictly intended to cover the cost of infrastructure 39 

improvements for the Stony Ridge Expansion Project and is secured. A number of unit 40 

owners at Stony Ridge have expressed concerns about the fact that landscaping has 41 

not been completed yet, and Jackson did issue a Code Enforcement Letter to Keith 42 

Garot today. Garot informed him that he will address the issues which were 43 

complained about in a timely fashion.  44 

  The State approved Wayfinding Project Sign Plans have now been received. Bids will 45 

be reviewed by the Finance and Parks Committees in the near future. 46 

 Permits have been issued for new single family homes on Cherrywood Court, 47 
Northwoods Drive and Westwood Drive. 48 

4



Minutes for the June 28, 2016 Meeting of the Plan Commission 

I:\1. 2016 Agendas\Plan\2016_06\062816 Plan Commission Minutes - Unapproved Version.docx 

Created by Janal Suppanz on 6/28/2016; Last Printed: 7/6/2016 2:38 PM 

 -4-  

 

 The closing on the sale of the Mill Road property to Al Gokey is scheduled for June 1 
30th. Gokey informed Jackson that he intends to pour foundations in late fall. 2 

 Mike Kahr of Deaths Door Marine has been retained to repair the damage the swim 3 
dock sustained during a recent storm. Hopefully those repairs will be completed soon. 4 

 Over the course of the past two weeks he has asked a large number of people to 5 
remove their dogs from Waterfront Park. The new park regulation signage has now 6 

been erected. 7 

  Enforcement action has been taken against the people who were working on a 8 
construction project at 2460 Cherrywood Court as they were spilling a large amount of 9 

rocks and mud on the roadway.  10 

 Enforcement will be taken against property owners who are not maintaining their 11 
properties in accord with Village regulations. 12 

 13 
Item No. 6. Matters to be placed on a future agenda or referred to a Committee, official or 14 
employee: 15 
The next meeting of the Plan Commission will be conducted on Tuesday, July 26, 2016 at 5:30 P.M.  16 
 17 
It was the consensus that: 18 

    In the future all Public Hearing Notices shall be mailed via certified mail to the immediately 19 
adjoining property owners. Copies of public hearing notices will also be mailed to each of the 20 
Plan Commission members, and the employees in the Village office will see that one copy of 21 
each public hearing notice is enclosed in a self-addressed postage paid envelope. 22 

   The previously mentioned Sign Code regulations will be reviewed at length at a future 23 
meeting of the Plan Commission. 24 

   As time permits Jackson will draft Zoning Code amendments which comply with Act 391, 25 
and, if necessary, a work session(s) will be scheduled. 26 

. 27 
Adjournment: 28 
A motion was made by Howard, seconded by Grutzmacher to adjourn the meeting of the Plan 29 
Commission at 8:10 P.M. Motion carried – All ayes. 30 

 31 

Respectfully submitted,  32 

 33 
Janal Suppanz,  34 

Assistant Administrator 35 

5



1    Copyright © |2015| American Planning Association - Wisconsin Chapter| All rights reserved. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

August Case Law Update 
August 31, 2015 

 
A summary of Wisconsin court opinions decided during the month of August  

related to planning 
 

For previous Case Law Updates, please go to: www.wisconsinplanners.org/learn/law-and-legislation 

 
 
United States Court of Appeals for the Seventh Circuit 
 
Regulation	  of	  Speech	  After	  Reed	  v.	  Town	  of	  Gilbert	  
	  
It	  did	  not	  take	  long	  for	  the	  U.S.	  Supreme	  Court's	  June	  decision	  in	  Reed	  v.	  Town	  of	  Gilbert	  concerning	  sign	  
regulation	  to	  impact	  other	  cases.	  (For	  a	  summary	  of	  decision	  in	  Reed	  v.	  Town	  of	  Gilbert,	  see	  the	  APA-‐WI	  
June	  Case	  Law	  Update.)	  	  In	  Norton	  v.	  City	  of	  Springfield,	  the	  U.S.	  Court	  of	  Appeals	  for	  the	  Seventh	  Circuit	  
(the	   federal	   intermediate	   appellate	   court	   covering	   the	   region	   that	   includes	  Wisconsin)	   found	   that	   an	  
ordinance	   prohibiting	   panhandling	   in	   the	   City	   of	  Springfield,	   Illinois’	   “downtown	   historic	  
district”	  violates	  the	   First	   Amendment	   because	   it	   embodies	   content	   discrimination	   subject	   to	   strict	  
scrutiny	  under	  the	  U.S.	  Supreme	  Court’s	  decision	  in	  Reed	  v.	  Town	  of	  Gilbert.	  	  
	  
(A	  recent	  article	  in	  the	  New	  York	  Times	  discussing	  Reed	  v.	  Town	  of	  Gilbert	  described	  the	  legal	  concept	  of	  
“strict	   scrutiny”	   in	   the	   following	   way:	   “Strict	   scrutiny	   requires	   the	   government	   to	   prove	   that	   the	  
challenged	  law	  is	  ‘narrowly	  tailored	  to	  serve	  compelling	  state	  interests.’	  You	  can	  stare	  at	  those	  words	  as	  
long	  as	  you	  like,	  but	  here	  is	  what	  you	  need	  to	  know:	  Strict	  scrutiny,	  like	  a	  Civil	  War	  stomach	  wound,	  is	  
generally	  fatal.”)	  
	  
The	  Norton	  case	  highlights	  how	  Reed	  v.	  Town	  of	  Gilbert	  has	  significantly	  changed	  the	   legal	   framework	  
for	   understanding	   content-‐based	   regulation	   of	   speech	   -‐-‐	   something	   frowned	   upon	   under	   the	   First	  
Amendment.	  The	  City	  of	  Springfield’s	  ordinance	  at	  issue	  in	  Norton	  prohibited	  panhandling	  in	  the	  City’s	  
“downtown	  historic	  district,”	  an	  area	  encompassing	  less	  than	  2%	  of	  the	  City.	  (For	  those	  of	  you	  who	  are	  
Abraham	   Lincoln	   buffs	   and	   have	   been	   to	   Springfield,	   you	   know	   the	   area.)	   	   The	   ordinance	   defined	  
panhandling	  as	  an	  oral	  request	  for	  an	  immediate	  donation	  of	  money.	  Signs	  requesting	  money	  and	  oral	  
pleas	  to	  send	  money	  later	  were	  allowed.	  The	  plaintiffs	  in	  the	  case	  contended	  that	  the	  ordinance’s	  rule	  
barring	  oral	  requests	  for	  money	  now	  but	  not	  regulating	  requests	  for	  money	  later	  was	  a	  form	  of	  content	  
discrimination	  in	  violation	  of	  the	  First	  Amendment.	  	  
	  
The	   case	  went	   before	   the	   Seventh	   Circuit	   Court	   of	   Appeals	   two	   times.	   Initially,	   the	   Court	   of	   Appeals	  
decided	   that	   Springfield’s	   anti-‐panhandling	   ordinance	   did	   not	   draw	   lines	   based	   on	   the	   content	   of	  
anyone’s	  speech.	  Following	  that	  decision,	  however,	  the	  plaintiffs	  petitioned	  for	  a	  rehearing.	  The	  Court	  of	  
Appeals	  deferred	  consideration	  of	  the	  petition	  for	  rehearing	  to	  wait	  for	  the	  U.S.	  Supreme	  Court	  to	  issue	  
its	  decision	  in	  Reed	  v.	  Gilbert.	  
	  

For	  more	  questions	  or	  comments	  about	  these	  cases,	  please	  contact:	  
Brian	  W.	  Ohm,	  JD,	  VP	  of	  Chapter	  Affairs	  
c/o	  Dept.	  of	  Urban	  &	  Regional	  Planning,	  UW-‐Madison	  
925	  Bascom	  Mall	  
Madison,	  WI	  53706	  
bwohm@wisc.edu	  

	  

6



2     Copyright © |2015| American Planning Association - Wisconsin Chapter| All rights reserved. 
 

Following	   the	  U.S.	   Supreme	   Court’s	   decision	   in	  Reed	   v.	   Town	   of	   Gilbert,	   the	   Seventh	   Circuit	   Court	   of	  
Appeals	   reconsidered	   the	   Norton	   case	   and	   the	   outcome	   was	   much	   different	   -‐-‐	   the	   Court	   enjoined	  
enforcement	  of	  the	  City’s	  anti-‐panhandling	  due	  to	  First	  Amendment	  concerns.	  According	  to	  the	  Seventh	  
Circuit	  Court:	  
	  

[The	  U.S.	  Supreme	  Court	  in]	  Reed	  understands	  content	  discrimination	  differently	  [than	  the	  way	  
it	  was	  considered	  before].	  It	  wrote	  that	  “regulation	  of	  speech	  is	  content	  based	  if	  a	  law	  applies	  to	  
particular	   speech	   because	   of	   the	   topic	   discussed	   or	   the	   idea	   or	   message	   expressed.”	   	   .	   .	   .	  
Springfield’s	  ordinance	  regulates	  “because	  of	  the	  topic	  discussed”.	  The	  Town	  of	  Gilbert,	  Arizona,	  
justified	  its	  sign	  ordinance	  in	  part	  by	  contending,	  as	  Springfield	  also	  does,	  that	  the	  ordinance	  is	  
neutral	  with	   respect	   to	   ideas	  and	  viewpoints.	   The	  majority	   in	  Reed	   found	   that	   insufficient:	   “A	  
law	  that	  is	  content	  based	  on	  its	  face	  is	  subject	  to	  strict	  scrutiny	  regardless	  of	  the	  government’s	  
benign	  motive,	  content‑neutral	   justification,	  or	   lack	  of	   ‘animus	  toward	  the	   ideas	  contained’	   in	  
the	  regulated	  speech.”	  .	  .	   .	   It	  added:	  “a	  speech	  regulation	  targeted	  at	  specific	  subject	  matter	  is	  
content	  based	  even	  if	  it	  does	  not	  discriminate	  among	  view‑points	  within	  that	  subject	  matter.”	  

	  
Sign	  regulations	  after	  Reed	  
	  
The	   Seventh	   Circuit’s	   decision	   in	   Norton	   underscores	   the	   sweeping	   impact	   of	   the	   Supreme	   Court’s	  
decision	   in	  Reed	   for	  sign	  regulations.	   Local	  governments	  need	  to	   review	  their	   sign	  ordinances	  and	  ask	  
“Does	  this	  regulation	  apply	  to	  a	  sign	  because	  of	  the	  content	  on	  the	  sign?”	  In	  other	  words,	  if	  you	  have	  to	  
read	   the	  message	   to	   figure	  out	  how	  a	   sign	   is	   to	  be	   regulated,	   then	   it	   is	   content-‐based	  and	   subject	   to	  
challenge	   under	   Reed.	   Examples	   include	   the	   categorical	   regulations	   found	   in	   many	   sign	   codes	   for	  
“political	   signs,”	   “temporary	   directional	   signs,”	   “ideological	   signs,”	   “identification	   signs,”	   “real	   estate	  
signs,”	   “homeowner	   association	   signs,”	   “drive-‐through	   restaurant	   signs”	   “business	   hours	   of	   operation	  
signs,”	  or	  signs	  based	  on	  other	  content	  distinctions.	  	  	  
	  
Previous	  U.S.	  Supreme	  Court	  cases	  recognized	  content-‐based	  distinctions	  between	  commercial	  and	  non-‐
commercial	   speech.	   The	   Court	   drew	   distinctions	   based	   on	   the	   content	   of	   the	   sign	   and	   held	   that	  
regulation	   of	   commercial	   speech	   is	   subject	   to	   a	   lower	   level	   of	   scrutiny	   by	   the	   courts	   that	   non-‐
commercial	  speech.	   	  Reed	  did	  not	  overrule	  the	   line	  of	  cases	  drawing	  distinctions	  between	  commercial	  
and	  non-‐commercial	  speech	  so,	  at	   least	  for	  the	  time	  being,	  sign	  ordinances	  that	   include	  provisions	  for	  
commercial	  signage,	  such	  as	  special	  regulations	  for	  “temporary	  business	  signs”	  should	  be	  okay.	  	  	  
	  
Justice	   Thomas,	   who	  wrote	   the	  majority	   opinion	   for	   the	   Court	   in	  Reed,	   offered	   some	   other	   content-‐
based	  regulations	  that	  may	  be	  acceptable	  if	  they	  are	  narrowly	  tailored	  to	  ensure	  public	  safety:	  “such	  as	  
warning	  signs	  marking	  hazards	  on	  private	  property,	  signs	  directing	  traffic,	  or	  street	  numbers	  associated	  
with	  private	  houses.”	   It	  will	   be	   critical	   that	   local	   communities	   clearly	   articulate	   the	  purpose	   for	   these	  
regulations.	  	  
	  
Justice	  Thomas	  also	  offered	  examples	  of	  content-‐neutral	  sign	  regulations	  that	  are	  not	  impacted	  by	  Reed.	  
Regulations	   that	   have	   nothing	   to	   do	   with	   a	   sign’s	   message	   include:	   size,	   building	   materials,	   lighting,	  
moving	  parts,	  and	  portability.	  Justice	  Thomas	  also	  states:	  “on	  public	  property,	  the	  Town	  may	  go	  a	  long	  
way	   toward	  entirely	   forbidding	   the	  posting	  of	   signs,	   so	   long	  as	   it	  does	   so	   in	  an	  evenhanded,	   content-‐
neutral	  manner.”	  This	  would	  include	  the	  public	  right-‐of-‐way.	   If	  signs	  are	  allowed,	  the	  regulations	  must	  
not	  distinguish	  based	  on	  the	  content	  of	  the	  message,	  like	  only	  allowing	  signs	  by	  non-‐profit	  organizations	  
such	  as	  a	  church	  sign	  about	  a	  spaghetti	  supper.	  	  
	  

7



3     Copyright © |2015| American Planning Association - Wisconsin Chapter| All rights reserved. 
 

Justice	   Alito	   wrote	   a	   concurring	   opinion	   that	   included	   a	   non-‐exhaustive	   list	   of	   the	   type	   of	   sign	  
regulations	   that	   would	   be	   content-‐neutral.	   (The	   full	   list	   was	   included	   in	   the	   June	   Case	   Law	   Update.)	  
However,	   the	   list	   raises	   some	  questions.	   Justice	  Alito’s	   list	   includes	   time	   restrictions	  on	   signs	   for	  one-‐
time	  events.	  This	  seems	  at	  odds	  with	  the	  temporary	  directional	  sign	  challenged	  in	  Reed.	  Nevertheless,	  
after	  Reed	  it	  would	  presumably	  be	  appropriate	  to	  have	  sign	  ordinances	  that	  regulate	  “temporary	  signs”	  
based	  on	  factors	  other	  than	  the	  event	  that	  is	  the	  subject	  of	  the	  sign	  such	  as	  allowing	  the	  sign	  to	  remain	  
for	  a	  certain	  number	  of	  days.	  	  
	  
Justice	  Alito’s	  list	  also	  indicated	  that	  it	  would	  be	  appropriate	  to	  have	  signs	  that	  distinguish	  between	  on-‐
premises	  and	  off-‐premises	  signs.	  In	  order	  to	  determine	  if	  a	  sign	  is	  off-‐premises	  or	  on-‐premises,	  the	  local	  
government	  will	  need	  to	  read	  the	  sign.	  Presumably	  the	  on-‐premise/off-‐premise	  distinction	   is	  still	  valid	  
based	  on	  Justice	  Alito’s	  statement	  and	  the	  fact	  that	  prior	  U.S.	  Supreme	  Court	  decisions	  recognized	  those	  
distinctions	  and	  those	  decisions	  were	  not	  overruled.	  For	  example,	  not	  allowing	  off-‐premise	  billboards	  in	  
residential	  areas	  should	  still	  be	  appropriate.	  	  
	  
As	  communities	  remove	  content-‐based	  restrictions,	  they	  can	  explore	  alternatives	  such	  as	  allowing	  “yard	  
signs”	   (as	   opposed	   to	   “yard	   sale”	   which	   would	   not	   be	   content-‐neutral)	   of	   a	   certain	   number	   and	  
dimension	  in	  residential	  districts.	  Regulations	  could	  also	  be	  based	  on	  the	  type	  of	  building	  material	  of	  the	  
sign.	  From	  a	  planning	  perspective,	  it	  will	  be	  important	  to	  stand	  back	  and	  evaluate	  what	  a	  community	  is	  
trying	  to	  accomplish	  through	  sign	  regulations	  and	  how	  much	  regulation	  is	  necessary.	   It	   is	   important	  to	  
review	  other	  ordinances	   that	  may	  relate	   to	  speech,	   like	  Springfield’s	  panhandling	  ordinance,	   to	   insure	  
they	  are	  content-‐neutral.	  
	  
Certainly	  we	  will	  see	  additional	  cases	  on	  these	  issues.	  	  
 
 
Wisconsin Supreme Court Opinions 
 
[No	  planning-‐related	  cases	  to	  report.]	  
	  
	  	  
Wisconsin Court of Appeals Opinions 
 
Boundary	  Change	  Via	  Intergovernmental	  Agreement	  Was	  Proper	  
	  
On	  February	  19,	  2013,	  voters	  in	  the	  Town	  of	  Harrison	  in	  Calumet	  County	  approved	  incorporating	  a	  4.6-‐
square-‐mile	  area	  as	  the	  Village	  of	  Harrison.	  On	  June	  6,	  2013,	  the	  Town	  and	  Village	  of	  Harrison	  published	  
notice	   of	   a	   joint	   public	   hearing	   “to	   discuss	   proposed	   Intergovernmental	   Cooperation	   Agreement	  
affecting	   the	   provision	   of	   municipal	   services,	   apportionment	   of	   costs	   of	   municipal	   services,	  
apportionment	  of	  assets	  and	   liabilities,	  and	  boundary	   line	  adjustments	  between	  the	  Town	  of	  Harrison	  
and	  the	  Village	  of	  Harrison.”	  The	  Town	  and	  Village	  of	  Harrison	  sent	  notice	  of	  the	  meeting	  via	  certified	  
mail	  to	  1910	  property	  owners	  entitled	  to	  receive	  notice	  pursuant	  to	  Wis.	  Stat.	  §	  66.0301(6).	  [Note:	  this	  
case	   deals	   with	   an	   intergovernmental	   agreement	   enacted	   under	   the	   general	   intergovernmental	  
cooperation	  authority,	  NOT	  under	  the	  authority	  to	  create	  cooperative	  boundary	  agreements	  under	  Wis.	  
Stat.	  §	  66.0307.]	  
	  

8



4     Copyright © |2015| American Planning Association - Wisconsin Chapter| All rights reserved. 
 

The	  Town	  and	  the	  Village	  boards	  approved	  the	  agreement	  on	  July	  2,	  2013.	  The	  agreement	  permitted	  the	  
Village	  board	   to	   “trigger	   the	  boundary	   line	   change”	   through	   the	  adoption	  of	   an	  ordinance,	  which	   the	  
Village	  board	  passed	  on	  August	  6,	  2013.	  As	  a	  result	  of	  the	  boundary	  change,	   	  1736	   	  parcels	   	   that	   	  had	  	  
been	   	   located	   	   in	   	   the	   	   Town	   	   were	   	   relocated	   	   to	   	   the	   Village.	   The	   nearby	   Cities	   of	   Kaukauna	   and	  
Menasha,	  the	  Village	  of	  Sherwood,	  and	  some	  individual	  property	  owners	  sued	  the	  Village	  and	  Town	  of	  
Harrison	   arguing	   that	   the	   agreement	   is	   void	   because	   it	   involved	   a	   “major”	   boundary	   change	   that	  
exceeded	  the	  scope	  allowed	  by	  statute	  and	  that	  the	  Town	  and	  Village	  did	  not	  comply	  with	  the	  statutory	  
notice	  requirements	  for	  intergovernmental	  agreements	  because	  the	  notice	  did	  not	  tell	  property	  owners	  
that	  approval	  of	  the	  cooperative	  agreement	  would	  mean	  they	  would	  be	  relocated	  to	  the	  village.	  	  	  
	  
The	  Wisconsin	  Court	  of	  Appeals	  disagreed.	   The	  Court	  noted	   that	   the	   statute	   is	   silent	  on	   the	   scope	  of	  
boundary	   changes	   permitted	   by	   intergovernmental	   agreements.	   The	   Court	   was	   unwilling	   to	   read	  
language	   into	  the	  statute	  creating	  a	  distinction	  between	  “major”	  boundary	  changes	  and	  more	  modest	  
boundary	   changes.	   As	   for	   the	   notice,	   the	   Court	   also	   noted	   that	   the	   statute	   does	   not	   specify	   what	  
information	  must	  be	  contained	  in	  the	  notices.	  As	  a	  result,	  the	  Court	  concluded	  the	  general	  notice	  that	  
there	  would	  be	  “boundary	  line	  adjustments”	  was	  sufficient	  to	  meet	  the	  statutory	  requirements.	  	  	  
	  
The	   case	   is	  City	  of	  Kaukauna	  v.	  Village	  of	  Harrison	   and	   is	   recommended	   for	  publication	   in	   the	  official	  
reports.	  
	  
Distinguishing	  Between	  Rules,	  Ordinances,	  and	  Resolutions	  
	  
Wisconsin	  Carry,	  Inc.	  v.	  City	  of	  Madison,	  involved	  the	  validity	  of	  a	  rule	  adopted	  by	  the	  City	  of	  Madison’s	  
Transit	  and	  Parking	  Commission	  that	  prohibits	  a	  person	  from	  traveling	  in	  a	  city	  bus	  with	  a	  weapon	  (the	  
“bus	   rule”).	   	   The	   City	   of	   Madison	   General	   Ordinances	   authorize	   the	   City’s	   Transit	   and	   Parking	  
Commission,	   the	  City	   agency	   responsible	   for	  overseeing	   the	  City’s	  bus	   system,	   to	  establish	   “rules	   and	  
procedures”	  related	  to	  transit.	  The	  Commission	  adopted	  the	  bus	  rule	  under	  that	  authority.	   	  Wisconsin	  
Carry,	  Inc.,	  an	  organization	  that	  describes	  itself	  as	  a	  “gun	  rights	  organization,”	  and	  one	  of	  its	  members,	  
brought	  suit	  asking	  the	  court	   	  to	   	  declare	   	  that	   	  the	   	  bus	   	  rule	   	   is	   	  preempted	  	  by	   	  Wis.	  Stat.	  §	  66.0409	  
which	   prohibits	   local	   governments	   from	   adopting	   “ordinances”	   	   and	   	   “resolutions”	   	   that	   regulate	  
firearms.	  The	  Wisconsin	  Court	  of	  Appeals	  determined	  that	  the	  Commission’s	  rule	  is	  neither	  an	  ordinance	  
nor	   a	   resolution	   and	   therefore	   the	   rule	  was	   not	   preempted	   by	   the	   prohibition	   on	   local	   regulation	   of	  
firearms.	  	  
	  

9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28




